
PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS 

CITY HALL - 86 W. CENTER STREET, DOUGLAS, MI 

SPECIAL MEETING, WEDNESDAY, APRIL 27, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order – Remote Special Meeting Procedures

B. Roll Call - 

Approval of Agenda (additions/changes/deletions)

-Motion to Approve; April 27, 2022. (Roll Call Vote)

C. Public Comment (limit 5 minutes please)

D. Communications - Review of public Written Communications.

E. New Business

1. Public Hearing; Site Plan Review & Waterfront Construction Application (Major) –

Accessory Structures – Bulkhead, Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands;

R-2 Residential District.  156 Lakeshore Drive (Scott/Christina Garberding, Ryan Hall)

- Motion to Open Public Hearing (Roll Call Vote)

a. Applicant Presentation

b. Public Comments (limit 3 minutes each, please)

c. Staff Remarks

d. Commissioner Questions

- Motion to Close Public Hearing, Approve with Conditions (Roll Call Vote)

2. Public Hearing; Site Plan Review & Waterfront Construction Application (Minor) –

Accessory Structure and Accessory Use – Outdoor Public Recreation; R-3 Neighborhood

Conservation District.  80 E. Center Street (City of the Village of Douglas)

- Motion to Open Public Hearing (Roll Call Vote)

a. Applicant Presentation

b. Public Comments (limit 3 minutes each, please)

c. Staff Remarks

d. Commissioner Questions

- Motion to Close Public Hearing, Approve with Conditions (Roll Call Vote)

3. Public Hearing; Site Plan Review & Waterfront Construction Application (Minor) –

Addition to Principal Building and Accessory Structures – Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes

to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential District.  96 Lakeshore Drive (Robert Tighe)

- Motion to Open Public Hearing (Roll Call Vote)

a. Applicant Presentation

b. Public Comments (limit 3 minutes each, please)

(Item E,3 continued on Page 2 of 2.) 

CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS 

ALLEGAN COUNTY, MI - POSTED THIS 22ND DAY OF APRIL, 2022. 

N 

This meeting is being held 
in-person with option for 
remote attendance and 
electronic participation. 

ACCESS INSTRUCTIONS 

To attend and participate in this 
meeting of the City of the Village 
of Douglas Planning Commission 
remotely, please consider joining 

on-line or by phone. 

Join on-line by visiting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us
/j/83008110298 

Join by phone by dialing: 

+1 (312) 626-6799

Then enter 
“Meeting ID”: 

830 0811 0298

Those who are hearing impaired 
and require 

additional accommodations are 
encouraged to contact 

(269) 857-1438
or 

clerk@douglasmi.gov 

NOTICE 
REMOTE MEETING 

mailto:clerk@douglasmi.gov


(Item E,3 continued from Page 1 of 2.) 

c. Staff Remarks

d. Commissioner Questions

- Motion to Close Public Hearing, Approve with Conditions (Roll Call Vote)

4. Public Hearing; Site Plan Review & Waterfront Construction Application (Major) –

Accessory Structures – Bulkhead, Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential District.

130 Lakeshore Drive (Kevin/Cami Freeman, Mike DeYoung)

- Motion to Open Public Hearing (Roll Call Vote)

a. Applicant Presentation

b. Public Comments (limit 3 minutes each, please)

c. Staff Remarks

d. Commissioner Questions

- Motion to Close Public Hearing, Approve with Conditions (Roll Call Vote) Public Hearing

5. Public Hearing; Site Plan Review & Waterfront Construction Application (Minor) –

Accessory Structures –Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential District.

3071 Lakeshore Drive (Sara Fash, Ryan Hall)

- Motion to Open Public Hearing (Roll Call Vote)

e. Applicant Presentation

f. Public Comments (limit 3 minutes each, please)

g. Staff Remarks

h. Commissioner Questions

- Motion to Close Public Hearing, Approve with Conditions (Roll Call Vote)

6. Public Hearing; Site Plan Review & Waterfront Construction Application (Major) –

Accessory Structures – Bulkhead/Revetment, Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential

District.  144 Lakeshore Drive (Frederick Eagle Royce III)

- Motion to Open Public Hearing (Roll Call Vote)

i. Applicant Presentation

j. Public Comments (limit 3 minutes each, please)

k. Staff Remarks

l. Commissioner Questions

- Motion to Close Public Hearing, Approve with Conditions (Roll Call Vote)

7. Resolution to Recommend Amendment of the City of the Village of Douglas Schedule of Fees (K. Heneghan)

Consideration of Planning Commission Resolution recommending City Council revise the City of the Village of Douglas

Schedule of Fees and penalty structure related to Zoning and Land Use applications and permitting.

- Motion to Recommend (Roll Call Vote)

F. Old Business

G. Reports of Officers, Members, Committees - Planning & Zoning Administrator (N. Wikar)

H. Public Comment (limit 5 minutes please)

I. Adjournment

2 of 2 



CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS 
REMOTE MEETING SPECIAL PROCEDURES 

The following guidelines shall be in-place to assist and manage public attendance and participation 
in remote (online and telephone), electronic meetings of the City of the Village of Douglas, 
Michigan. 

1. City Staff shall be available to assist the public to make reasonable accommodations for those
with disabilities and/or the hearing impairment to attend and participate without
impediment.

2. For the purpose of carrying-out remote meetings, a staff member will act as "administrator"
to manage all content, access, video, audio, chat, "gesturing," recording, visual, and
screensharing controls.

3. For the purposes of preserving the agenda and integrity of the meeting, the meeting
"administrator" shall assist the chairperson in moderating audio/microphone controls of
participants, building a speaker list of those wishing to comment while limiting public
microphone access to "public comment"/"public participation" periods of the meeting, as
published.

4. Online attendees/participants shall indicate their desire to speak on an agenda item or topic
by using "gesturing" controls (i.e. Raise Hand, Thumbs Up, etc.), using the chat window, or
by voice. All microphones will be temporarily unmuted for a brief period of time at the
beginning of all "public comment"/"public participation" periods of the meeting so those
joining by telephone or those participants who are audio-restricted may indicate they would
like to be added to the speaker list. The chairperson and meeting "administrator" will share
the responsibility of building and managing the speaker list, recognizing each speaker
individually, and toggling microphone controls so all speakers on the list may be heard.

5. Lewd, profane, hostile, aggressive, racist/discriminatory, disruptive, or otherwise obstructive
behavior by attendees/participants will not be tolerated. The City and meeting
"administrator" reserves the right to warn, limit, restrict, and remove any content or
participants in violation of this directive.

6. All "public comment"/"public participation" periods of the meeting will be concluded after
the chairperson/meeting "administrator" has:

a. exhausted the speaker list
b. responded to any outstanding "gesturing"
c. answered any outstanding requests to speak as indicated in the chat window, and
d. after a final call for any additional or remaining public comments as indicated by

voice. All microphones will again be temporarily unmuted at that time.
7. The City shall record and make available to the public, in a reasonable time frame, all content

of all remote meetings of Council and public boards/commissions for the public record,
online, and at individual request in electronic format.



1

Nick Wikar

From: Joyce Petter <jrpwjp@comcast.net>
Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2022 2:24 PM
To: Nick Wikar
Cc: Joyce Petter
Subject: Wades bayou

April 21, 2022 

Nicholas Wiker, City Planner 

From Joyce Petter, 11 No. Water Street, Douglas 

  

  

When I moved my gallery from downtown Saugatuck to Douglas in 1993, it started the 

Douglas Destination movement and other art galleries and shops soon came to Douglas.  Fast 

forward to 2005 when I made another large investment in Douglas and created the lovely 

house next door to Wade’s Bayou Memorial Park.   

Shortly thereafter, Center Street was remade by the City of Douglas as a grand walk to Wade’s 

Bayou.  In doing so they removed 3 parking spaces on the south side of my house and offered 

to cut three spaces from the walkway to the lake.   I knew that this would ruin the view for 

walkers and said not to make the cut‐ins. 

It is important to remember that Views are priceless. 



2

The view of the lake as one walks to the water at Wade’s Bayou or drives there has been 

tremendously improved this year with the removal of the commercial kayak rental office.  It is 

now a completely open view of the lake and the park.  

Wade’s Bayou Memorial Park is a beautiful, peaceful park and a tremendous asset to the city 

of the Village of Douglas and the entire community.  Neighbors and Visitors enjoy the view of 

the lake as they walk to the park. It is a beautiful place to sit and watch the sunrise, just 

contemplate the lake, picnic at the tables, fish, or take a kayak ride, etc.  Cars on Center Street 

can see the lake from blocks away with no unsightly commercial activities. 

There is no way that another non‐conforming building may ever be put in this extremely 

important place. The zoning on this land calls for a 20‐foot front yard and a 30‐foot back 

yard and this is only possible if the next building or auxiliary building is moved across the 

street.   

The terrain is such that it would be necessary to put the new office for kayak rentals at the 

west end of the parking lot rather than on the hill to the park and this is also where the Porta 

Johns should be placed, next to the commercial building.  The racks holding kayaks are also a 

commercial activity and should be placed next to the rental office. 

The use of Wade’s Bayou Memorial Park has been for contemplation and relaxation from the 

world. The Proper placement of the new Kayak rental office and the kayaks that are rented will 

enhance the priceless view and beauty of Wade’s Bayou Memorial Park. 



3

We need to preserve this park land and all commercial activity must be in the west center of 

the park behind the parking lot.  No new non‐conforming use of the land is needed as there 

are other options. 

Joyce Petter 
jrpwjp@comcast.net 
 
 
 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Douglas Planning Commission 

Nicholas Wikar 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 

April 22, 2022 

Subject: Public Hearing - Site Plan Review & Waterfront 
Construction Application (Major) – Accessory 
Structure(s) – Bulkhead, Deck(s)/Stairs and Site 
Changes to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential District.  
156 Lakeshore Drive (Scott/Christina Garberding, 
Ryan Hall)

The City of Douglas has received an Application for Site Plan Review and Waterfront Construction 

Application (“Applications”) for 156 Lakeshore Drive, located in the R-2 Residential District, Douglas, 

Michigan. Scott and Christina Garberding, property owners, and Ryan Hall (“Applicant”) seek to obtain Site Plan 

Review approval for new Accessory Structure(s) including bulkhead, deck(s), and stairs constructed without permits.  

Waterfront Construction Application for Accessory Structures considered "Major" shall be reviewed in a public 

hearing by the Douglas Planning Commission, pursuant to Chapter 151 of the City of the Village of Douglas 

Code of Ordinances.  Commissioners shall arrive at Findings of Fact pursuant to Section 151.027 Duties of 

Planning Commission and Section 24.03 Site Plan Review Standards, of the Douglas Zoning Ordinance. 

Having reviewed the Applications for completeness, the Planning and Zoning Administrator has provided the 

enclosed submittals to the Planning Commission for consideration and review against those Waterfront 

Construction and Site Plan Review standards. Upon review, the Planning Commission shall provide: 1.) approval, 

2.) approval with conditions, or 3.) denial; providing a statement of any conditions imposed to meet the standards 

of the R-2 zone, applicable Land Use requirements, and/or the standards of Approval. Escrow and 

Performance Guarantee may be recommended by the Planning Commission to ensure compliance to any 

Conditions of Approval (Section 23.03(3)(d); and (h)). 

Pursuant to the City of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Ordinances of the City, the Applicant shall remit payment of any required Land Use 

applications fees and penalties for work performed without permits.  The Planning Commission shall require payment of dues and may 

recommend escrow and performance guarantee to the City, equal to the estimated cost of site improvements required and necessary for compliance 

with any Conditions of Approval, as assigned by the Planning Commission.

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission arrive at Findings of Fact and consider 

Conditional Approval of the Site Plan Review and the Application for Waterfront Construction - 

"Major" in public hearing, for Accessory Structures located at 156 Lakeshore Drive, zoned R-2 Residential 

District, in Douglas, Michigan. 

1 of 1 



























RE: 156 Lakeshore, Douglas MI

Sue Kennedy <sue@landtechwmi.com>
Fri 11/5/2021 9:15 AM
To: Bayha, John (EGLE) <BayhaJ@michigan.gov>
Cc: Ryan Hall <Ryan@landtechwmi.com>;Nick Wikar <nwikar@douglasmi.gov>

Thanks John!
 
From: Bayha, John (EGLE) <BayhaJ@michigan.gov>  
Sent: Friday, November 5, 2021 8:50 AM 
To: Sue Kennedy <sue@landtechwmi.com> 
Cc: Ryan Hall <Ryan@landtechwmi.com>; Nick Wikar <nwikar@ci.douglas.mi.us> 
Subject: RE: 156 Lakeshore, Douglas MI
 
Sue,
 
Thanks for reaching out on this project. Based on the photos you sent, and our phone discussion of the issues just
now, it looks like the stairway/walkway leading from the exis�ng house down to the beach would meet WRD-008
item 1. and not require an EGLE permit. As we discussed, a new deck lakeward of the crest would not be allowed
though and would likely not be permi�ed even if a Special Excep�on permit applica�on was submi�ed under Part
353. Let me know fi you have addi�onal ques�ons or concerns.
 
Thanks,
 
John Bayha, P.E. | Kalamazoo District Engineer | Water Resources Division             
Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE)
7953 Adobe Road, Kalamazoo, MI 49009 | Cell 269-568-2680 | Fax 269-567-3555

 
 

From: Sue Kennedy <sue@landtechwmi.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 4, 2021 2:34 PM 
To: Bayha, John (EGLE) <BayhaJ@michigan.gov> 
Subject: 156 Lakeshore, Douglas MI
 

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

 

Hi John,
This is one of our projects in Douglas.  The City of Douglas planner contacted us and was asking for EGLE approval
for the steps.
I believe Ryan was expec�ng this would not require a permit.  Under WRD-008?  This is cri�cal dune.  Most of
Ryan’s jobs are HRE.
We did the revetment, and that permit is also a�ached.  I’m going to send you a few emails so that you can see
the pictures.
We stopped work to make sure there wasn’t a viola�on.
Please let me know when you have �me to discuss.
Thanks again!
 
 

mailto:sue@landtechwmi.com
mailto:BayhaJ@michigan.gov
mailto:abuse@michigan.gov


Best regards,
 
Sue Kennedy
Permit Manager
LandTech / ShoreTech WMI
2450 Van Ommen Dr. Ste B
Holland, MI  49424
Office: (616) 928-0786
Fax: (616-928-0787
Mobile: (616) 886-2545
Email: sue@landtechwmi.com
Website: landtechwmi.com
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From: skennedy1205@gmail.com <skennedy1205@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 4, 2021 2:07 PM 
To: Sue Kennedy <sue@landtechwmi.com> 
Subject: Garb
 
 

 

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:sue@landtechwmi.com
mailto:skennedy1205@gmail.com
mailto:skennedy1205@gmail.com
mailto:sue@landtechwmi.com


 WATER RESOURCES DIVISION 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

Original Effective Date: 
July 26, 2011 
 
Revised Date: 
February 23, 2015 
 
Reformatted Date: 
 

Subject: Part 353 Activities Not Constituting a Use 
 

Category: 
 Internal/Administrative 
 External/Non-Interpretive 
 External/Interpretive 

 
Type: 

 Policy 
 Procedure 
 Policy and Procedure 

Program Name: 
Water Resources Program 

Number: WRD-008 
 

Page:  1 of 4 

 
A Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Policy and Procedure cannot establish regulatory 
requirements for parties outside of the DEQ.  This document provides direction to DEQ staff 
regarding the implementation of rules and laws administered by the DEQ.  It is merely 
explanatory; does not affect the rights of, or procedures and practices available to, the public; 
and does not have the force and effect of law. 
 
ISSUE:   
 
To identify activities generally considered to not be a “contour change” or “use” within the 
meaning of Sections 35301(a) and (k) of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 
Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), respectively, and, therefore, does not require a permit 
under Part 353, Sand Dunes Protection and Management, of the NREPA; and to clarify the 
exemptions allowed for utility work related to Section 35306(4) of Part 353. 
 
Other federal, state, and local laws may apply.  Property owners are encouraged to seek 
assistance from federal, state, and local government agencies to ensure compliance with 
applicable regulations. 
 
AUTHORITY: 
 
Part 353 of the NREPA. 
 
STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT:  
 
The DEQ, Water Resources Division (WRD), public noticed draft policy WRD-008, Part 353 
Activities Not Constituting a Use, March 25, 2013, through April 15, 2013.  Comments on the 
draft document were invited through announcements in the DEQ Calendar and by e-mail to 
individuals and organizations that previously expressed an interest in the Critical Dunes 
Program.  The policy was revised to address comments, as appropriate, and a responsiveness 
summary was prepared. 
 
DEFINITIONS:   
 
“Contour change” includes any grading, filling, digging, or excavating that significantly alters the 
physical characteristic of a critical dune area, except that which is involved in sand dune mining 
as defined in Part 637, Sand Dune Mining, of the NREPA. 
 
“Use” means a developmental, silvicultural, or recreational activity done or caused to be done 
by a person that significantly alters the physical characteristic of a critical dune area or a contour 
change done or caused to be done by a person.  Use does not include sand dune mining as 
defined in Part 637. 
 

EQ0106 (06/2014) 



Water Resources Division 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 Number:   WRD-008 
Subject: Part 353 Activities Not Constituting a Use 
  
 Page 2 of 4 
 
 
POLICY:  
 
The following developmental, silvicultural, or recreational activities generally do not significantly 
alter the physical characteristics of a critical dune area or constitute a contour change and, 
therefore, are not “uses” requiring a Part 353 permit: 
 
1. Construction using handheld tools of stairways, boardwalks, and/or trams including the 

entry/exit platforms that are elevated above grade to a height sufficient to allow sand 
movement, five feet wide or less, have no roof or walls, and will disturb vegetation only 
within the footprint of the stairway, boardwalk, or tram system.  This does not include the 
use of wheeled or tracked self-propelled tools.   

 
2. Removal of trees that are threatening a structure, utility line, or human safety, provided 

that the trees are removed in such a manner to not cause a contour change on the 
surrounding dune and the stump and root system are left in place to minimize erosion. 

 
3. Installation of a pole or post using handheld tools.  Some examples include a flag pole, 

mailbox, sign, utility pole, light pole, birdhouse, birdfeeder, basketball hoop, and yard art. 
 

4. Replacement of an existing deck or patio, in-place and in-kind, including new or additional 
posts by using handheld tools; or conversion of a patio to an elevated deck, not to exceed 
the existing dimensions and area of impact.   

 
5.  Installation of a fence, but not a retaining wall, utilizing handheld tools provided: 

 
• The fence follows the existing grade. 
• The fence is constructed to be open to allow wind and sand movement; examples of 

such types of fences would be split rail or cyclone.  
• Soil movement is limited to that necessary to place the fence posts. 

 
6. Placement of a temporary snow or sand fence. 

 
7. Planting a native tree or other native vegetation using handheld tools without changing 

existing grades or contours.  
 

8. Removal of newly wind deposited, unvegetated sand located on existing structures, 
driveways, hardened parking areas, roads, sidewalks, and boardwalks provided excess 
sand is not disposed below the ordinary high water mark of the Great Lakes, in regulated 
wetlands or floodplains, or on slopes with a gradient greater than 25 percent, the crest or 
vegetated areas within critical dune areas.  This category does not apply to the removal of 
naturally deposited sand in unvegetated or open dune community.  

 
9. Removal of invasive species utilizing handheld tools. 

 



Water Resources Division 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 Number:   WRD-008 
Subject: Part 353 Activities Not Constituting a Use 
  
 Page 3 of 4 
 
 
10. Replacement of an existing retaining wall previously permitted under Part 353 or in 

existence prior to the effective date of Part 353 of less than six feet in height, in place, with 
no impacts outside the footprint of the existing wall. 

 
11. Placement and/or installation of large rocks, poles, or concrete blocks to be used as a 

barricade for vehicle activity.  The rocks, poles, or concrete blocks shall be placed 
intermittently with ample space between each rock, pole, or concrete block to allow wildlife 
passage and sand movement, and shall not significantly alter the physical characteristics 
or decrease stability of the dune feature, require vegetation removal, or be placed on 
slopes with a gradient of more than 25 percent. 

 
12. Repair an existing residential water well or install a new residential water well.  The well 

site shall not significantly alter the physical characteristics or decrease stability of the dune 
feature, require vegetation removal, or be placed on slopes with a gradient of more than 
25 percent.  Any temporary or permanent access to the well site requires a permit under 
Part 353.  Drilling mud must be managed and cleaned up in such a manner as to not 
impact the dunes by causing erosion or impacting vegetation. 

 
Pursuant to Section 35306(4) of Part 353, a permit is not required for a use needed to maintain, 
repair, or replace pipelines, utility lines, and other utility facilities that were in existence on  
July 5, 1989, or were constructed in accordance with a permit under Part 353.  This exemption 
does not include septic systems or other site-specific water, power, or wastewater treatment 
systems and applies only if the maintenance, repair, or replacement is completed in compliance 
with all of the following: 
 

(a) Vehicles shall not be driven on slopes greater than 1-foot vertical rise in a 3-foot 
horizontal plane. 

(b) All disturbed areas shall be immediately stabilized and revegetated with native 
vegetation following completion of work to prevent erosion. 

(c) Any removal of woody vegetation shall be done in a manner to assure that any 
adverse effect on the dune will be minimized and will not significantly alter the 
physical characteristics or stability of the dune. 

(d) To accomplish replacement of a utility pole, the new pole shall be placed adjacent to 
the existing pole, and the existing pole shall be removed by cutting at ground level. 

(e) In the case of repair of underground utility wires, the repair shall be limited to the 
minimal excavation necessary to replace the wires by plowing, small trench 
excavation, or directional boring.  Replacement of wires on slopes steeper than 
1-foot vertical rise in a 4-foot horizontal plane shall be limited to installation by 
plowing or directional boring only. 

(f) In the case of repair or replacement of underground pipelines, directional boring shall 
be utilized, and if excavation is necessary to access and bore the pipeline, the 
excavation area shall be located on slopes 1-foot vertical rise in a 4-foot horizontal 
plane or less. 

 



.. I 

Water Resources Division 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Subject: Part 353 Activities Not Constituting a Use 

DIVISION CHIEF APPROVAL: 

William Creal, Chief 
Water Resources Division 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Ji 

Number: WRD-008 

Page 4 of 4 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Douglas Planning Commission 

Nicholas Wikar 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 

April 22, 2022 

Subject: Public Hearing - Site Plan Review, Outdoor Public 
Recreation & Waterfront Construction Application 
(Minor) – Temporary Accessory Structure(s); R-3 
Neighborhood Conservation District.  80 E. Center 
Street (City of the Village of Douglas, Third Coast 
Surf Shop)

The City of the Village of Douglas has provided Application for Site Plan Review and 

Waterfront Construction Application (“Applications”) for 80 E. Center Street, located in the R-3 

Neighborhood Conservation District and Downtown District, in Douglas, Michigan. The City of the 

Village Of Douglas, property owner, and Third Coast Surf Shop (“Applicant”) seek to obtain Site Plan 

Review approval for new temporary Accessory Structure(s) for Outdoor Public Recreation, classified as a by-right Land 

Use in the R-3 zone.  

Having reviewed the Applications for completeness, the Planning and Zoning Administrator has provided the 

enclosed submittals to the Planning Commission for consideration and review against the 

Waterfront Construction and Site Plan Review standards. Commissioners shall arrive at Findings of Fact pursuant 

to Section 24.03 Site Plan Review Standards of the Douglas Zoning Ordinance. Upon review, the Planning 

Commission shall provide: 1.) approval, 2.) approval with conditions, or 3.) denial; providing a statement of any 

conditions imposed to meet the standards of the R-3 zone, applicable Land Use requirements, and/or 

the standards of Approval. 

Pursuant to the City of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Ordinances of the City, municipal applications are exempt from permit fee, escrow, and 

performance guarantee.

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission arrive at Findings of Fact and consider 

Conditional Approval of the Site Plan Review in public hearing, for Temporary Accessory Structure(s) 

located at 80 E. Center Street, zoned R-3 Neighborhood Conservation District in the Downtown District, 

Douglas, Michigan. 

1 of 1 















22

Option 1 – Self-Contained Storage Module 

● Location – in the gravel area adjacent to, and parallel with, the existing line of trees 
– the same area used by the previous concessionaire – along the northern end of 
the park. Would not restrict public sidewalk, road, water, or dock access.

● Better use of park space – in previous years, rental equipment, racks, and trailers 
were spread throughout the park and surrounding road and parking area. A 
storage module would offer a single area for storing rental equipment, freeing up 
space for park visitors and providing a neater overall park appearance. 

● Security – provides highest degree of safety and security, thereby limiting liability, 
for Third Coast Paddling and the City of Douglas.

● Better-maintained rental inventory – increased protection of brand-new rental 
equipment (31 kayaks, 9 stand-up paddleboards, and life jackets) from the 
elements and potential criminal activity. 

Our first-choice storage option is a portable, self-contained, highly secure, enclosed 
storage module with an 8’ x 40’ footprint. This is the same system we use at our 
rental locations in New Buffalo and Benton Harbor. 

Previous Concession (2021) Our Proposed Concession



33

Option 1 – Self-Contained Storage Module 

● Public art – we propose working with the City of 
Douglas to consider options for a banner or direct 
mural on the module, to create destination public 
art that fits the downtown area. We would 
envision the art becoming a popular backdrop for 
visitor photos, similar to this example (right) in 
downtown Saugatuck (photo from 
Saugatuck/Douglas Area CVB).   

● Greenery – we also propose installing and 
maintaining decorative planters alongside the 
storage module to further enhance the beauty of 
the park.

We believe that, if done correctly, the storage module can complement the 
Downtown Development District and waterfront area. All expenses associated with 
the proposals below would be paid by Third Coast Paddling. 

Example of storage module with banner/mural installation. 
(Specific artwork to be determined.)



44

Option 2 - Storage Shed + Storage Rack 

● New storage shed – similar in size to 
existing structure, with concession window 
for helping customers.  (See example at 
bottom right; specific shed to be 
determined.)

● Storage inside shed – limited space to keep 
life jackets secured inside. 

● Outdoor storage – a custom-made rack 
would be installed next to the shed for 
rental stand-up paddleboards, with rental 
kayaks stacked nearby. Cable/chain locks 
would secure outdoor rental equipment 
nightly. (Rental equipment would not be 
protected from elements or from potential 
vandalism.)

Another option for storage is to install a new 
storage shed with a concession window and a 
custom-made outdoor rack next to the shed to 
hold rental stand-up paddleboards, with rental 
kayaks stacked nearby.

We use these outdoor racks at our rental sites at 
Silver Beach County Park (pictured at right) and 
Warren Dunes State Park. 























To: 

From: 

Date: 

Douglas Planning Commission 

Nicholas Wikar 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 

April 22, 2022 

Subject: Public Hearing - Site Plan Review & Waterfront 
Construction Application (Minor) –Addition to 
Principal Building and Accessory Structures – 
Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes to Sensitive 
Lands; R-2 Residential District.  96 Lakeshore 
Drive (Robert Tighe)

The City of the Village of Douglas has provided Application for Site Plan Review 

and Waterfront Construction Application (“Applications”) for 96 Lakeshore Drive, located in the 

R-2 Residential District, in Douglas, Michigan. Robert Tighe, property owner, (“Applicant”) seeks to obtain 

Site Plan Review approval for addition of an attached Accessory Structure (deck/stairs) to the existing Single-

Family Dwelling, and for construction to replace existing with Accessory Structure(s) - Deck(s)/Stairs on Sensitive 

Lands.  

Having reviewed the Applications for completeness, the Planning and Zoning Administrator has provided the 

enclosed submittals to the Planning Commission for consideration and review against 

the Waterfront Construction and Site Plan Review standards. Commissioners shall arrive at Findings of Fact 

pursuant to Section 24.03 Site Plan Review Standards of the Douglas Zoning Ordinance. Upon review, the 

Planning Commission shall provide: 1.) approval, 2.) approval with conditions, or 3.) denial; providing a statement 

of any conditions imposed to meet the standards of the R-2 zone, applicable Land Use requirements, 

and/or the standards of Approval. 

Pursuant to the City of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Ordinances of the City, the Applicant shall remit payment of any required Land Use 

applications fees.  The Planning Commission shall require payment of fees due, and may recommend escrow and performance guarantee to the 

City, as assigned by condition of the Planning Commission.

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission arrive at Findings of Fact and consider 

Conditional Approval of the Site Plan Review in public hearing, for Accessory Structures – Deck(s)/

Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands located at 96 Lakeshore Drive, zoned R-2 Residential District, 

Douglas, Michigan. 

1 of 1 



















To: 

From: 

Date: 

Douglas Planning Commission 

Nicholas Wikar 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 

April 22, 2022 

Subject: Public Hearing - Site Plan Review & Waterfront 
Construction Application (Major) – Accessory 
Structure(s) – Bulkhead, Deck(s)/Stairs and Site 
Changes to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential 
District.  130 Lakeshore Drive (Kevin/Cami 
Freeman, Mike DeYoung)

The City of Douglas has received an Application for Site Plan Review and Waterfront 

Construction Application (“Applications”) for 130 Lakeshore Drive, located in the R-2 Residential 

District, Douglas, Michigan. Kevin and Cami Freeman, property owners, and Mike DeYoung (“Applicant”) seek 

to obtain Site Plan Review approval for new Accessory Structure(s) including bulkhead, deck(s), and stairs 

constructed without permits.  

Waterfront Construction Application for Accessory Structures considered "Major" shall be reviewed in a 

public hearing by the Douglas Planning Commission, pursuant to Chapter 151 of the City of the Village of 

Douglas Code of Ordinances.  Commissioners shall arrive at Findings of Fact pursuant to Section 151.027 

Duties of Planning Commission and Section 24.03 Site Plan Review Standards, of the Douglas Zoning Ordinance. 

Having reviewed the Applications for completeness, the Planning and Zoning Administrator has provided the 

enclosed submittals to the Planning Commission for consideration and review against those Waterfront 

Construction and Site Plan Review standards. Upon review, the Planning Commission shall provide: 1.) approval, 

2.) approval with conditions, or 3.) denial; providing a statement of any conditions imposed to meet the standards 

of the R-2 zone, applicable Land Use requirements, and/or the standards of Approval. Escrow 

and Performance Guarantee may be recommended by the Planning Commission to ensure compliance 

to any Conditions of Approval (Section 23.03(3)(d); and (h)). 

Pursuant to the City of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Ordinances of the City, the Applicant shall remit payment of any required Land Use 

applications fees and penalties for work performed without permits.  The Planning Commission shall require payment of dues and may 

recommend escrow and performance guarantee to the City, equal to the estimated cost of site improvements required and necessary for 

compliance with any Conditions of Approval, as assigned by the Planning Commission.

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission arrive at Findings of Fact and consider 

Conditional Approval of the Site Plan Review and the Application for Waterfront Construction 

- "Major" in public hearing, for Accessory Structures located at 130 Lakeshore Drive, zoned R-2 

Residential District, in Douglas, Michigan. 

1 of 1 





130 Lakeshore Drive 

Douglas, Michigan 49098 
 

The attached document is a survey reflecting the existing conditions and behind that is 
a survey marked to reflect proposed modifications to restore the site: 
 
1.  Existing 
     A. Replacement of Prior Deck.  The "upper" deck is roughly where the prior deck 
was situated. 
            
     B.  Landscaping.  I have reflected the dune grass planted in the Fall, as was also 
reflected in my sea wall permit application.  I have also included the fountain grass 
planted along the north and south borders of the property because my contractor 
suggested you would want that reflected as well, even though I had thought a single 
column of grass (approx. 10 plants on each border) was immaterial and did not reflect it 
in the seawall application.  
 
2. Proposed 
    A.  Retain Prior Deck.  I would like to keep the replacement "upper" deck, which 
replaces the deck that existed on the property per the photos and old survey I sent to 
you in December. Subject to site conditions I believe this is substantially similar to the 
prior deck. Moreover, the site has been stabilized, erosion has ceased, and I would be 
very concerned about making any modifications to the as-built replacement.  So I 
respectfully request that EGLE allow me to retain the replacement deck. 
   B.  Delete North Stairs.  I would delete the north stairs added to provide access to 
the new, "lower" deck. 
   C.  Delete New/Lower Deck.  I would remove the entire lower deck. 
   D.  Stairs To Beach.  I would restore the prior platform and stairs down to the beach 
to allow safe beach access. 
   E.  Fountain Grass.  If EGLE deems the fountain grass non-conforming and would 
like it removed I would of course do so. 
   F.  More Dune Grass.  If EGLE requires or recommends, I would plant dune grass in 
the area between the replacement deck and the seawall (where the "new/lower" deck 
would be removed). 
   G.  Retaining Wall. If EGLE requires or recommends, I would remove the retaining 
wall (north side of deck). 
 
 
 



I', 
I 11 

I 11 
J ,, I,, 

I::: I It 

~ /// 
.. ~1 1 t ~, ,, 
~ ,11 
CJ I I J 

~

•t-, I I/ 
I I/ 

1:>:1 
'& __ & ,'!", 

-~, 11 

~ 
,,, 

I IJ 
I 11 

I 11 
I IJ 

J ,, 
I IJ , ,, 

I 11 
I I/ 

I I I 
I I/ 
'' 

7 

HOUSE DETAIL 
NOSCALE 

We bacl>y ecrt.ify tbat We b>.vc c:xarnincd ~ ix=i,o; heme &=,il,od, that the hnprov=i:s e.,:e l«>tcd ct,tircly thercxm"" 
:;hown IUld that they do DOI cn<:ro>cil <Xctpl"" shown ba'oou. 

Thi:, swvey wa:, mac!<: from the k:gal <l<scciption sbown OOOV¢. Tbe d=riptioo .<boold be coo,pat<>d with Ch< Ab,t<oct of Title or 
Tltle Policy for occut3C}', =cs md =:qx;o,,... 

1·.·:,c,·,·.j "'Concrete 

130 Lokeshore urwe 

The land referred to in this commitment, situated in the County af 
Allegan, City of Douglas, State of Michigan, is described as follows: 

Lot 8, Trumbull's Second Addition according to the plot thereof 
recorded in Uber 4 of Plots, Page 2 of Allegan County Records. 

(Metropolitan Title Commitment No. 228232) 

N GRAND RAPIDS HUDSONVILLE 
'°79 Patl< Enst Court 5570 32nd Avenue 

Hu~Ml~9426 

D • Description dimension 
M • Measured dimension 
P • Platted Dimension 

$ ~ 
NEOEHVELD 

%o~lt~~ 
HOl..tAND 

347 Hoo= BouI""'1'<1 
Holw\d,MI"9423 

PHONE: (616) 66!1-5190 

ANNARBOR 
9« N. Main SL 

AM Amor, Ml 48104. 
• • Set Iron Stake PHONE; (616) 393-0«9 PHONE: (734) 929-6%3 
o • Found lmn Stake 

· --x- • Fence Line 
www.nedervclc!.com rev~ date: 

© 2007 Nedervcld, Inc. project no.: 07200314 date: 4-23-07 CH 









ALLEGAN COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
3255 - 122nd Avenue, Suite 200, Allegan, MI 49010

Environmental Health 269-673-5415

ADDRESS 

TAX ID 03-

EMAIL 

130 LAKESHORE DR
59-710-009-00

MIKED@MDYHOMES.COM
1423 RIVERVIEW DR

PERMIT FOR SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PERMIT

PROPERTY INFORMATION (of project location) 

CITY DOUGLAS ZIP 49406

NAME

PHONE

ADDRESS CITY ZIP 
616-291-3363

HOLLAND 49423

SANITARIAN DATE ISSUED

APPLICANT INFORMATION
COMPANY

NAME COMPANY

GENERAL CONDITIONS:
In accordance with Rule 1709 promulgated under the authority of Part 91, Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, and in addition to the information on the attached plan(s) and special conditionas, the following general conditions aply to the 
earth change authorized by this permit:

Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, and in addition to the information on the attached plan(s) and special conditions, the following general
conditions apply to the earth change authorized by this permit:

 Design, construct, and complete the earth change in a manner that limits the exposed area of disturbed land for the shortest period of time. 
 Remove sediment caused by accelerated soil erosion from runoff water before it leaves the site of the earth change.

Temporary or permanent control measures shall be designed and installed to convey water around, through, or from the earth change at non-erosive velocity. 
 Install temporary soil erosion and sedimentation control measures before or upon commencement of the earth change activity and maintain the measures on a daily

basis. Remove temporary soil erosion and sedimentation control measures after permanent soil erosion measures are in place and the area is stabilized. 
("Stabilized" means the establishment of vegetation or the proper placement, grading, or covering of soil to ensure its resistance to soil erosion, sliding, or other
earth movement.)

 Complete permanent soil erosion control measures for the earth change within five calendar days after final grading or upon completion of the final earth change. 

THIS PERMIT MUS BE POSTED AT THE PROJECT SITE.

PERMIT CONDITIONS: 
1. The permitted activity shall be completed in accordance with the approved plans and specification, and the attached general and specific conditions. 
2. This permit does not waive the necessity for obtaining all other required federal, state, or local permits. 
3. Applicant shall notify the permitting agency within one week after completing the permitted activity or one week prior to the permit expiration date, 

whichever comes first. 

PERMIT NUMBER

EXPIRATION
DATE

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Retaining walls and new deck.

ADDITIONAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS:  Permit cannot be closed until the site has full established vegetation. Permit holder shall 
plan to seed / landscape as soon as possible after earth change. Install a silt sack in down gradient catch basin (as applicable). INSTALL 
MILLINGS, CRUSHED CONCRETE, OR OTHER FORM OF CONSTRUCTION DRIVEWAY prior to excavation. Maintain vegetation 
buffers that are being used as a control measure. Properly install and maintain silt fencing. Do not allow sediment off the permitted parcel or 
onto the roadway. Use erosion control blanket on slopes 1 on 4 or greater.

EMAIL KLF860@GMAIL.COM
130 LAKESHORE DR

NAME BATTS ROBERT H  & JUDITH F

PHONE

ADDRESS CITY ZIP 
312-451-8833

DOUGLAS 49406

OWNER  INFORMATION (PERMITTEE) 

STORMWATER OPERATOR - For projects over 1 acres of disturbance. Or On-Site Responsible Person:

PERMIT SPECIFIC INFORMATION:  Residential Commercial Gravel Pit 
Start Date Proposed End Date

Size of earth change (sq. ft.) Earth change greater than an acre in size  
Earth change greater than 5 acres  Earth change within 500 feet of lake, stream or other body of water
Earth change within 500 feet of a storm water catch basin which discharges into a body of water  OTHER

TOWNSHIP DOUGLAS CITY SECTION # 17SUBDIVISION LOT # TOWN 17 17RANGE

7/1/2021
  

7/1/2022


 


3000

9/9/2021

7/1/2022

SESC21-486

Jacob Wheatley, REHS

MIKE DEYOUNG 

PHONE:

609. 1.4a609. 1.4a Page 1 of 2



If it is not possible to permanently stabilize the earth change, then maintain temporary soil erosion and sedimentation control measures until permanent soil erosion
control measures are in place and the area is stabilized.

609. 1.4a609. 1.4a Page 2 of 2



STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY

KALAMAZOO DISTRICT OFFICE

March 10, 2022

VN No: VN-012750

VIA EMAIL

Mr. Kevin Freeman
130 Lakeshore Drive
Douglas, Michigan 49406
klf860@gmail.com 

Dear Mr. Freeman:

SUBJECT: Violation Notice
Order to Restore
Site Name: 03-130 Lakeshore Drive-Douglas
Property Location: 130 Lakeshore Drive, City of Douglas, Allegan County,
T 03N, R 16W, Section 17

The Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) Water Resources Division 
(WRD) conducted an inspection on November 17, 2021, at the above referenced parcel of 
property.  The purpose of the inspection was to evaluate the property for compliance with Part 
353, Sand Dune Protection and Management, of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended.  At the time of the inspection, WRD staff observed 
that a tiered deck system, sunken wooden stairs, wooden retaining walls, grading and 
landscaping with non-native species activities had been conducted lakeward of the crest of the 
dune and in areas strictly regulated under the authority of Part 353.  This letter is being sent 
because you have been identified as the property owner and/or contractor responsible for the 
property and/or the unauthorized activities.

Section 324.35304(1) of Part 353 prohibits “a use within a critical dune area” without first 
obtaining a permit from the EGLE.  A review of WRD files indicates that no permits have been 
issued for this activity at the property.  Therefore, it appears that this activity was conducted in 
violation of Part 353.

In consideration of the requirements of Part 353, the WRD has determined that a permit would 
not have been approved for this project.  Therefore, within 30 days of the date of this letter, or a 
mutually agreed upon schedule, you must bring the property into compliance with the 
requirements of Part 353.  To comply with Part 353, you must complete the following actions:

1. Remove all unauthorized portion of the decks, retaining walls, sunken wooden steps 
and other structures located landward of the crest of the dune.  The existing 
unauthorized seawall and accompanying riprap will still be processed under submittal 
number: HP3-GDF2-B02GC.

GRETCHEN WHITMER
GOVERNOR

LIESL EICHLER CLARK
DIRECTOR

mailto:klf860@gmail.com


Mr. Kevin Freeman
March 10, 2022
VN No: VN-012750

2. Remove recently planted non-native vegetation and replace it with native dune species 
of vegetation appropriate for the area or provide a detailed vegetation restoration plan 
that will be implemented this spring.

3. Do not place additional structures, fill, or remove vegetation within regulated areas (the 
entire parcel is within the critical dune area).

4. Restore the lakeward slope of the dune and the areas lakeward of the crest to the 
original grades and provide a re-vegetation plan that relies solely on native dune 
species.

Please contact this office immediately upon completion of the above restoration requirements in 
order that a WRD inspection can be conducted.

We anticipate your cooperation in resolving this matter.  If you have any questions, you may 
contact me at: 269-568-2680; BayhaJ@michigan.gov; or EGLE, WRD, Kalamazoo District 
Office, 7953 Adobe Road, Kalamazoo, Michigan 49009-5025. 

Sincerely,

John Bayha, P.E.
District Engineer
Kalamazoo District Office
Water Resources Division

cc: Allegan County SESC Agent
Mr. Nick Wikar, City of Douglas
Mr. James Zellinger, EGLE
Mr. Kyle Alexander, EGLE









































To: 

From: 

Date: 

Douglas Planning Commission 

Nicholas Wikar 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 

April 22, 2022 

Subject: Public Hearing - Site Plan Review & 
Waterfront Construction Application (Minor) –
Accessory Structures –Deck(s)/Stairs and site 
changes to Sensitive Lands; R-2 Residential 
District.  3071 Lakeshore Drive (Sara Fash, 
Ryan Hall)

The City of the Village of Douglas has provided Application for Site Plan Review 

and Waterfront Construction Application (“Applications”) for 3071 Lakeshore Drive, located in 

the R-2 Residential District, in Douglas, Michigan. Sara Fash, property owner, and Ryan Hall (“Applicant”) 

seeks to obtain Site Plan Review approval for construction of new Accessory Structure(s) - Deck(s)/Stairs, to 

replace existing like features, and to make site improvements on Sensitive Lands.

Having reviewed the Applications for completeness, the Planning and Zoning Administrator has provided the 

enclosed submittals to the Planning Commission for consideration and review against 

the Waterfront Construction and Site Plan Review standards. Commissioners shall arrive at Findings of Fact 

pursuant to Section 24.03 Site Plan Review Standards of the Douglas Zoning Ordinance. Upon review, the 

Planning Commission shall provide: 1.) approval, 2.) approval with conditions, or 3.) denial; providing a statement of 

any conditions imposed to meet the standards of the R-2 zone, applicable Land Use requirements, 

and/or the standards of Approval. 

Pursuant to the City of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Ordinances of the City, the Applicant shall remit payment of any required Land Use 

applications fees.  The Planning Commission shall require payment of fees due, and may recommend escrow and performance guarantee to the 

City, as assigned by condition of the Planning Commission.

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission arrive at Findings of Fact and consider 

Conditional Approval of the Site Plan Review in public hearing, for Accessory Structures – Deck(s)/

Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands located at 3071 Lakeshore Drive, zoned R-2 Residential 

District, Douglas, Michigan. 

1 of 1 























To: 

From: 

Date: 

Douglas Planning Commission 

Nicholas Wikar 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 

April 22, 2022 

Subject: Public Hearing - Site Plan Review & Waterfront 
Construction Application (Major) –
Accessory Structures – Bulkhead/Revetment, 
Deck(s)/Stairs and site changes to Sensitive Lands; 
R-2 Residential District.  144 Lakeshore Drive 
(Frederick Eagle Royce III)

The City of Douglas has received an Application for Site Plan Review and Waterfront 

Construction Application (“Applications”) for 144 Lakeshore Drive, located in the R-2 Residential 

District, Douglas, Michigan. Frederick Eagle Royce III, property owner (“Applicant”), seeks to obtain Site Plan 

Review approval for new Accessory Structure(s) including bulkhead, deck(s), and stairs constructed, and the site 

otherwise altered, without permits.  

Waterfront Construction Application for Accessory Structures considered "Major" shall be reviewed in a 

public hearing by the Douglas Planning Commission, pursuant to Chapter 151 of the City of the Village of 

Douglas Code of Ordinances.  Commissioners shall arrive at Findings of Fact pursuant to Section 151.027 

Duties of Planning Commission and Section 24.03 Site Plan Review Standards, of the Douglas Zoning Ordinance. 

Having reviewed the Applications for completeness, the Planning and Zoning Administrator has provided the 

enclosed submittals to the Planning Commission for consideration and review against those Waterfront 

Construction and Site Plan Review standards. Upon review, the Planning Commission shall provide: 1.) approval, 

2.) approval with conditions, or 3.) denial; providing a statement of any conditions imposed to meet the standards 

of the R-2 zone, applicable Land Use requirements, and/or the standards of Approval. Escrow 

and Performance Guarantee may be recommended by the Planning Commission to ensure compliance 

to any Conditions of Approval (Section 23.03(3)(d); and (h)). 

Pursuant to the City of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Ordinances of the City, the Applicant shall remit payment of any required Land Use 

applications fees and penalties for work performed without permits.  The Planning Commission shall require payment of dues and may 

recommend escrow and performance guarantee to the City, equal to the estimated cost of site improvements required and necessary for 

compliance with any Conditions of Approval, as assigned by the Planning Commission.

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission arrive at Findings of Fact and consider 

Conditional Approval of the Site Plan Review and the Application for Waterfront Construction 

- "Major" in public hearing, for Accessory Structures located at 144 Lakeshore Drive, zoned R-2 

Residential District, in Douglas, Michigan. 

1 of 1 

































STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY

KALAMAZOO DISTRICT OFFICE

TO: Agencies with Critical Dune Areas in their Jurisdictions

FROM: Water Resources Division

DATE: March 14, 2022

SUBJECT: Notice of Application Received
Royce Frederick
144 Lakeshore Dr
Douglas, MI 49406
Site Name: 03-144 Lakeshore Drive-Douglas
Submission No. HPG-3TE5-QDZVC

Attached for your information is an application for permit under consideration by the Michigan 
Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE), Water Resources Division 
(WRD), for a project in a Critical Dune Area in accordance with Section 35304(1)(b), found in 
Part 353, Sand Dunes Protection and Management, of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended. 

If you would like additional information regarding this application, contact the local staff 
reviewer, John Bayha, at 269-568-2680; BayhaJ@michigan.gov; or EGLE, WRD, Kalamazoo 
Office, 7953 Adobe Road, Kalamazoo, MI, 49009-5025.

All correspondence should reference Submission No. HPG-3TE5-QDZVC.
 
cc:    Village of Douglas Clerk
         Allegan County Health Department
         Allegan County Clerk
         Allegan Conservation District
         John Bayha, EGLE

GRETCHEN WHITMER
GOVERNOR

LIESL EICHLER CLARK
DIRECTOR



STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY

KALAMAZOO DISTRICT OFFICE 

March 9, 2022

VN No: VN-012743

VIA EMAIL & CERTIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Frederick Royce, III
144 Lakeshore Drive
Douglas, Michigan 
eagle@feroyce.com 

Dear Mr. Royce:

SUBJECT: Violation Notice - After-the-Fact Application Notice
Site Name: 03-144 Lakeshore Drive-Douglas
Property Location: 144 Lakeshore Drive, City of Douglas, Allegan County,
T 03N, R 16W, Section 17, Parcel No: 03-59-710-008-00

The Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) Water Resources Division 
(WRD) conducted an inspection on November 17, 2021, at the above referenced parcel of 
property.  The purpose of the inspection was to evaluate compliance with Part 325, Great Lakes 
Submerged Lands and Part 353, Sand Dune Protection and Management, of the Natural 
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, and the 
administrative rules for Part 325.  At the time of the inspection, WRD staff observed that the 
placement of large armor stones (riprap) along your section of the beach, which is regulated 
under the authority of Part 325 and Part 353.  This letter is being sent because you have been 
identified as the owner responsible for the property and riprap revetment construction activities. 

Section 324.32512(c) of Part 325 prohibits the dredging or placement of filling on Great Lakes 
bottomlands without first obtaining a permit from the WRD.  A review of WRD files indicates that 
no permits have been issued for these activities.  Therefore, it appears that these activities were 
conducted in violation of Part 325. 

Furthermore, section 324.35304(1) of Part 353 prohibits the construction of a structure or 
initiation of a “use” within the critical dune area without first obtaining a permit from the WRD.  A 
review of WRD files indicates that no permits have been issued for these activities.  Therefore, it 
appears that these activities were also conducted in violation of Part 353. 

EGLE advises all unauthorized activities occurring within regulated areas on this property stop.

Based upon the amount and type of work, the WRD will consider processing an after-the-fact 
(ATF) permit application for these regulated activities.  A permit application can be completed by 
logging in to MiWaters at: https://miwaters.deq.state.mi.us/miwaters/external/home and creating 
an account. The application, detailed project plans, and appropriate fee must be completed for 
processing and review within 15 days of the date of this Violation Notice.  Section 324.32513(4) 
of Part 325 requires an ATF application fee that is two times the normal application fee.

GRETCHEN WHITMER
GOVERNOR

LIESL EICHLER CLARK
DIRECTOR

mailto:eagle@feroyce.com
https://miwaters.deq.state.mi.us/miwaters/external/home


Mr. Frederick Royce, III
March 9, 2022
VN No: VN-012743
Page 2 of 2

We anticipate your cooperation in resolving this matter.  If you have any questions, you may 
contact me a: 269-568-2680; BayhaJ@michigan.gov; or Kalamazoo District Office, 7953 Adobe 
Road, Kalamazoo, Michigan 49009-5025.

Sincerely,

John Bayha, P.E.
District Engineer
Kalamazoo District Office
Water Resources Division

cc: Allegan County SESC Agent
USACE, Detroit District
Mr. David Barker, Contractor
Mr. Nick Wikar, City of Douglas
Mr. Kyle Alexander, EGLE















1 of 1 

To: Douglas Planning Commission 

From: Nicholas Wikar 

Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date: April 22, 2022 

Subject:  Resolution Supporting Amendment of the City of the 

 Village of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Civil Fines

Initiated by the Commissioner Heneghan, the Douglas Planning Commission on its own motion shall 

consider Resolution supporting amendment of the City of the Village of Douglas Schedule of Fees and penalty 

structure ("Schedule of Civil Fines"), for Planning Commission Recommendation to City Council. 

The Douglas Planning Commission shall consider the following ordinances, fees, and penalty structure related to 

Zoning and Land Use applications and permitting for the City of the Village of Douglas: 

 "Appearance ticket; definition; consecutive numbering; form; contents; modification" Section 9f, Act 175 of 1927
 "Zoning permits; fees; effect of delinquent payment of fine, costs, or assessment" Section 406, Act 110 of 2006
 "Certain violations as nuisance per se." Section 407, Act 110 of 2006
 "Penalties" Section 8.10, City Charter
 "Action Requiring An Ordinance"  Section 8.5(2), City Charter
 "Rules of Construction; Appearance Tickets" 10.10, Code of Ordinances
 "Rules of Construction; General Penalty" 10.99, Code of Ordinances
 "Fees Set by Resolution" 30.01, Code of Ordinances
 “Municipal Civil Infractions” Chapter 34, Code of Ordinances
 "Streets and Sidewalks; Penalty" 93.99, Code of Ordinances
 "Health and Safety; Nuisances - Penalty" 95.99, Code of Ordinances
 “Trees; Penalty" 98.99, Code of Ordinances
 “Waterfront Construction; Penalty" 151.001, Code of Ordinances
 "Penalties, Remedies, and Enforcement" Section 18.0, Sign Ordinance (Ord. 111-D, Village of Douglas)
 "Penalties and Remedies" Section 23.05, Zoning Ordinance

These excerpts and the Resolution shall be provided for Commissioners to consider in discussion, for approval at the 

April 27th Special Meeting of the Douglas Planning Commission. 

There is no financial burden associated with this recommended action of the Planning Commission. 

It is recommended the Douglas Planning Commission approve the Resolution Supporting 

Amendment of the City of the Village of Douglas Schedule of Fees and Civil Fines, for recommendation to 

City Council. 


	Memo Style.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet (FINAL), 04-27-2022.pdf
	Pages from PC Agenda Packet (2nd DRAFT), 04-27-2022.pdf
	CDA LUG Notification (WORD) (2).pdf
	VN-After the Fact (WORD).pdf
	PC Agenda Packet (5th DRAFT), 04-27-2022.pdf
	Mail - Nick Wikar - Outlook (156 LSD).pdf
	Third-Coast-Paddling-Wades-Bayou-Storage-April-2022.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet (4th DRAFT), 04-27-2022.pdf
	VN-Order to Restore (WORD).pdf
	130 Lakeshore Drive.pdf
	130 Lakeshore SESC.pdf
	EGLE Existing and Proposed.pdf
	Survey (1) (1).pdf
	EGLE Letter 10.13.21 with Attachments.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet (3rd DRAFT), 04-27-2022.pdf
	wrd-policy-008-part-353-activities-not-constituting-a-use_483758_7.pdf
	ISSUE:
	Part 353 of the NREPA.
	STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT:
	DEFINITIONS:
	“Contour change” includes any grading, filling, digging, or excavating that significantly alters the physical characteristic of a critical dune area, except that which is involved in sand dune mining as defined in Part 637, Sand Dune Mining, of the NR...
	“Use” means a developmental, silvicultural, or recreational activity done or caused to be done by a person that significantly alters the physical characteristic of a critical dune area or a contour change done or caused to be done by a person.  Use do...
	POLICY:
	The following developmental, silvicultural, or recreational activities generally do not significantly alter the physical characteristics of a critical dune area or constitute a contour change and, therefore, are not “uses” requiring a Part 353 permit:
	1. Construction using handheld tools of stairways, boardwalks, and/or trams including the entry/exit platforms that are elevated above grade to a height sufficient to allow sand movement, five feet wide or less, have no roof or walls, and will disturb...
	2. Removal of trees that are threatening a structure, utility line, or human safety, provided that the trees are removed in such a manner to not cause a contour change on the surrounding dune and the stump and root system are left in place to minimize...
	3. Installation of a pole or post using handheld tools.  Some examples include a flag pole, mailbox, sign, utility pole, light pole, birdhouse, birdfeeder, basketball hoop, and yard art.
	4. Replacement of an existing deck or patio, in-place and in-kind, including new or additional posts by using handheld tools; or conversion of a patio to an elevated deck, not to exceed the existing dimensions and area of impact.
	5.  Installation of a fence, but not a retaining wall, utilizing handheld tools provided:
	 The fence follows the existing grade.
	 The fence is constructed to be open to allow wind and sand movement; examples of such types of fences would be split rail or cyclone.
	 Soil movement is limited to that necessary to place the fence posts.
	6. Placement of a temporary snow or sand fence.
	7. Planting a native tree or other native vegetation using handheld tools without changing existing grades or contours.
	8. Removal of newly wind deposited, unvegetated sand located on existing structures, driveways, hardened parking areas, roads, sidewalks, and boardwalks provided excess sand is not disposed below the ordinary high water mark of the Great Lakes, in reg...
	9. Removal of invasive species utilizing handheld tools.
	10. Replacement of an existing retaining wall previously permitted under Part 353 or in existence prior to the effective date of Part 353 of less than six feet in height, in place, with no impacts outside the footprint of the existing wall.

	HPSCANNER0470.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet (2nd DRAFT), 04-27-2022.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet (1st DRAFT), 04-27-2022.pdf
	PC Agenda (FINAL), 04-27-2022.pdf
	Pages from PC Agenda Packet (FINAL), 04-13-2022.pdf

	20220425100359237.pdf








